#### LONDON BOROUGH OF BROMLEY

#### **MINUTES**

of the proceedings of the Meeting of the Council of the Borough held at 7.00 pm on 19 April 2021

#### Present:

The Worshipful the Mayor Councillor Hannah Gray

The Deputy Mayor Councillor Stephen Wells

### Councillors

Gareth Allatt Peter Fortune Vanessa Allen Kira Gabbert Graham Arthur Will Harmer Kathy Bance MBE Christine Harris Yvonne Bear Colin Hitchins Julian Benington Samaris Huntington-Nicholas Bennett MA J.P. Thresher Kim Botting FRSA William Huntington-Mike Botting **Thresher** Katy Boughey Simon Jeal Mark Brock David Jeffervs Charles Joel Kevin Brooks David Cartwright QFSM Josh King Mary Cooke Kate Lymer Aisha Cuthbert Christopher Marlow Robert Mcilveen Ian Dunn Nicky Dykes Russell Mellor Judi Ellis Alexa Michael Robert Evans Peter Morgan Simon Fawthrop Keith Onslow

Tony Owen Angela Page **Chris Pierce** Neil Reddin FCCA Will Rowlands Richard Scoates Suraj Sharma Colin Smith Diane Smith **Gary Stevens** Melanie Stevens Harry Stranger Kieran Terry Michael Tickner Pauline Tunnicliffe Michael Turner Angela Wilkins

The meeting was opened with prayers

In the Chair The Mayor Councillor Hannah Gray

### 248 Apologies for absence

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Michael Rutherford.

### 249 Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

## To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 1st March 2021

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 1<sup>st</sup> March 2021 be confirmed.

### 251 Questions

Two questions had been received from members of the public for written reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in Appendix A to these minutes.

Ten questions had been received from members of the Council for oral reply. The questions, with the replies given, are set out in <u>Appendix B</u> to these minutes.

Four questions had been received from members of the Council for written reply. The questions, with the answers given, are set out in <u>Appendix D</u> to these minutes.

## To consider any statements that may be made by the Leader of the Council, Portfolio Holders or Chairmen of Committees.

Councillors Ian Dunn and Angela Wilkins had requested a statement from the Leader of the Council on the arrangements that the Council would be putting in place to hold Council and Committee meetings following the end (on 7<sup>th</sup> May 2021) of the dispensation which allowed virtual meetings.

Councillor Colin Smith stated that there was not much to make a statement about at the current stage – Members would be considering changes for the annual Council meeting later, and he did not wish to pre-empt that. There was a court case due to be heard on 21<sup>st</sup> April at which the Government's decision to restrict the use of virtual meetings was due to be challenged – following the outcome of this the Council would be aware of the options, and the Director of Corporate Services would brief all Members when that information was available. A meeting of the Urgency Committee could follow to formalise any decisions that needed to be taken.

Councillor Nicholas Bennett reported that Colonel Bob Stewart MP had asked the Government to allow Council annual meetings to take place after the end of restrictions up until the end of July, but this had been turned down. The Leader stated that there had been a large amount of correspondence on this behind the scenes and there was wide cross-party support for allowing virtual meetings to continue. Councillor Angela Wilkins asked for clarity about whether a meeting of the Urgency Committee would be needed. The Leader stated that a meeting might be needed at short notice - he would rely on the Director's advice, but agreed that the uncertainty was not helpful.

### 253 Budget Monitoring 2020/21 Report CSD21046

A motion to agree a sum of £3.767m as a provision for Covid related service pressures in future years (earmarked reserve) as detailed in paragraph 3.2.1 of the report, and to agree a sum of £9.895m is set aside as a Housing Investment Fund earmarked reserve, as detailed in paragraph 3.3.12 of the report, was moved by Councillor Graham Arthur, seconded by Councillor Colin Smith and CARRIED.

# 254 Bromley Borough Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - Approval of CIL Charging Schedule

Report CSD21045

A motion to approve the Bromley Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule at Appendix 1 to the report, with any necessary changes to indexation rates as noted in paragraph 3.13 of the report, to come into effect on 15<sup>th</sup> June 2021, was moved by Councillor Peter Morgan, seconded by Councillor Colin Smith, and **CARRIED.** 

## 255 Basic Need Programme Update Report CSD21053

A motion to approve the updated Basic Need Programme as set out in Appendix 3 to the report was moved by Councillor Peter Fortune, seconded by Councillor Colin Smith, and **CARRIED.** 

## 256 Minor Constitution Changes Report CSD21047

A motion to (i) agree the appointment of a Pensions Committee from the start of the 2021/22 Council year to replace the Pensions Investment Sub-Committee, (ii) amend the terms of reference of the General Purposes and Licensing Committee and agree the terms of reference of the new Pensions Committee as set out in Appendix A to the report, (iii) agree to modify Articles 14.4 and 14.5 of the Constitution to permit electronic execution and sealing of documents, and (iv) agree to modify Article 11 of the Constitution to clarify the separation between executive and non-executive functions, was moved by Councillor Pauline Tunnicliffe, seconded by Councillor Stephen Wells and CARRIED.

(Councillor Russell Mellor requested that his contrary vote be recorded.)

### 257 Annual Scrutiny Report 2020/21

Report CSD21036

A motion to receive the Annual Scrutiny Report for 2020/21 was moved by Councillor Simon Fawthrop, seconded by Councillor Christopher Marlow and CARRIED.

### 258 SACRE Annual Report 2019-20

Report CSD21051

A motion to receive the SACRE Annual Report for the 2019/20 academic year was moved by Councillor David Jefferys, seconded by Councillor Kate Lymer and **CARRIED.** 

### 259 To consider Motions of which notice has been given.

### (1) HRH The Prince Philip

The following motion was moved by Councillor Nicholas Bennett MA JP and seconded by Councillor Colin Smith.

"This Council, on behalf of the citizens of the Borough, places on record its great sadness at the death of HRH The Prince Philip, Duke of Edinburgh and pays tribute to his distinguished record with the Royal Navy during and after the Second World War and his unstinting and loyal support for Her Majesty the Queen for more than 70 years as husband and consort. It recalls his many initiatives including the Duke of Edinburgh Awards Scheme and his early support for the protection of the world's environment.

The Council thanks Her Worship the Mayor for her video tribute and her letter to Her Majesty the Queen and her family conveying the condolences of the Council and the people of Bromley on their sad loss."

The motion was **CARRIED**.

### (2) Permanent Exclusions

The following motion was moved by Councillor Kevin Brooks and seconded by Councillor Simon Jeal.

"Findings by the All- Party Parliamentary Youth Violence Commission, based on the most recent available Government data (2018 to 19 school year) shows that of all London boroughs, Bromley had the second highest rate of black pupils permanently excluded from secondary education.

This Council expresses concern at these findings, and recognises the damaging and long term effects that exclusion has on young people and their families. We request the Portfolio Holder for Children, Education and Families to immediately launch an inquiry into the reasons for these high rates; that inquiry is to include recommendations for action the Council can take, working

with academies and other partners, to reduce the number of black pupils being excluded."

The motion was **LOST**.

### 260 Annual Council Meeting 2021 Report CSD21054

A motion to agree that the annual meeting of the Council is moved to 6.30pm on Wednesday 19<sup>th</sup> May 2021 was moved by Councillor Colin Smith, seconded by Councillor Peter Fortune and **CARRIED**.

### The Mayor's announcements and communications.

The Mayor reported that a minute's silence had been held for HRH The Prince Philip on 10<sup>th</sup> April and again of the day of his funeral, on 17<sup>th</sup> April.

The Mayor thanked Members for attending the virtual quiz on 12<sup>th</sup> March, and thanked in particular the quiz master, Councillor Mark Brock.

The Mayor reminded Members of the following events –

- An online guided talk and walk hosted by Andy Ellis of Pudding Lane Tours from Canary Wharf to Wapping on 20<sup>th</sup> April at 7.30pm.
- The prize draw with Givergy for a Spitfire flight experience which closed on 25<sup>th</sup> April.
- The "Follow your Dreams" art competition for children up to age 11.

The Mayor's podcast series could be listened to via the following link –

https://hannahgraymeets.podbean.com/

She also mentioned her article in "Orpington Life" magazine.

The Meeting ended at 9.38 pm

Mayor



### Minute Annex

### Appendix A

### **COUNCIL MEETING**

### 19<sup>th</sup> April 2021

### QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC FOR WRITTEN REPLY

# 1. From Tony McPartlan to the Portfolio Holder for Resources, Commissioning and Contract Management

How much has the Council spent on commercial property outside the borough over the last 10 years and what is the current value of this portfolio?

### Reply:

The Council has spent £47,690,000 on investment properties outside the Borough over the last 10 years. The Statutory Asset Valuations of 2019/2020 state the value of these investments to be £45,934,187. The 2020/21 Statutory Asset Valuations are currently being undertaken and not yet finalised.

## 2. From Tony McPartlan to the Portfolio Holder for Resources, Commissioning and Contract Management

What is the decision making process that drives investing in properties outside of the borough, and does the Council think that it may now be better to focus solely on investments within our own borough?

### Reply:

The Council's Executive agreed in July 2017 to the following investment criteria which formed the basis of investment property purchases from this date onwards:

- Provides a net investment return of 5%;
- Provides a suitable mix of portfolio to mitigate against risks of "all eggs in one basket" i.e. variation in investment portfolio to cover void risk;
- Ability to sell the asset at a future date within a reasonable turnaround period of less than one year;
- Mitigates against problematic tenancy risks e.g. secured tenancy etc;
- Mitigates against significant repair liabilities which have a downward impact on the investment return i.e. seek full repairing leases from tenants;
- Mitigate against capital value risk purchase in places where capital values are unlikely to fall in the longer term;

1

- That opportunities should be explored in economic growth areas as well as the South East. This would be the cities of Manchester and Leeds together with other areas such as Cardiff, Bristol and the Midlands;
- That the lot size should be in excess of £5m;
- That multi-let investment opportunities which provide suitable income protection and covenant should be considered, considering management costs.

However, any decision to purchase is made by the Council's Executive. The last investment purchased outside of the Borough was in 2017 and since then, we have not sought, and are not intending, to purchase any other investment properties of this nature.

### **COUNCIL MEETING**

### 19th April 2021

### QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL FOR ORAL REPLY

### 1. From Cllr Angela Wilkins to the Portfolio Holder for Children, Education & Families

What information does he have concerning levels of domestic abuse since the beginning of lockdown in 2020 until now?

### Reply:

We gather information on domestic abuse in the borough via a number of sources and agencies, including Bromley Children's Project, Bromley and Croydon Women's Aid, the Metropolitan Police and any referrals that we get from the MASH. Each supplies data in its own way, but it is sadly the case that levels of domestic violence abuse do appear to have increased during the lockdown. This was not unexpected, unfortunately, and officers have continued to work to support those impacted by this most heinous abuse.

## 2. From CIIr Kathy Bance MBE to the Portfolio Holder for Public Protection & Enforcement

There are a number of static beggars operating in the borough sitting outside cash machines or popular shops. Even with the COVID lockdown they appear free to operate in this way. Is this considered anti-social behaviour (ASB)and is there intervention to assist those in need and enforcement for the criminal beggars?

### Reply:

Begging would normally be considered a Police matter which can be dealt with under the Vagrancy Act 1824, which has the power of arrest should the Police deem it appropriate. It is considered to be anti-social behaviour and Council officers do undertake targeted joint High Street patrols with the Police when begging issues are highlighted as and when required and when appropriate resources are available to do so.

LBB Public Protection Officers have a remit to deal with alleged breaches of COVID regulations by businesses, but alleged Covid breaches by people in general (which includes beggars) is a Police matter, and all reports should be made to the Police via 101 in the usual way.

### **Supplementary question:**

I have on several occasions raised a particular incident where a beggar who is housed, so he is not a vagrant, is selling things and asking people to put money on his electric card. I have raised this with our local Police as anti-social behaviour, and they say they are working on it, but this has been several months and he is still free to do this daily.

Sometimes he walks to the location, sometimes he uses a mobility vehicle, so I just wondered if this could be raised with our Police for more stringent action, where it is clearly a criminal beggar?

### Reply:

Yes, certainly, if you send me the details I will follow that up.

### **Additional supplementary question from Cllr Alexa Michael:**

As a regular visitor and shopper in Bromley town centre, I have noticed lately that there are beggars begging around bus stops when people are waiting for buses, demanding money, sometimes quite forcibly. Could I ask the Portfolio Holder if she will raise this with the local Police so that this anti-social behaviour can be dealt with?

### Reply:

Yes, of course I will.

### 3. From Cllr Vanessa Allen to the Leader of the Council

In the interests of public engagement and openness, will the Leader agree to continue live streaming of Council Meetings, including PDSs, sub-committees, panels etc. after we return to face to face meetings?

### Reply:

It is not in my gift to set rules for Council, PDS and general Council Committees.

That decision falls to the general membership. I would anticipate this question being directed to the General Purposes & Licensing Committee to consider with a Council decision being needed if any Constitutional change were deemed necessary.

I should imagine that the answer will boil down to evidenced public demand versus the cost of providing the additional service, but that would be to second guess the Committee's thoughts and eventual recommendation.

### **Supplementary question:**

As a member of General Purposes & Licensing Committee I would be more than happy to raise it, but that will probably be after we return to in-person meetings. We know that we have had more people watching these meetings, or some of them, at least, than we have ever had in the public gallery. It would be helpful if the Leader could support this, and could see it as a force for good in the borough.

### Reply:

I am not on the General Purposes & Licensing Committee so that would be me telling them what to do. It will be a question for the General Purposes & Licensing Committee.

### Additional supplementary question from CIIr Simon Fawthrop:

Is the Leader aware that the evidence on this is quite mixed, and does he agree with me that when it does go back to General Purposes & Licensing Committee they should consider all the evidence before rushing into a decision?

### Reply:

I would certainly agree that all Members should consider all the evidence before they make any decision, so I do endorse that. It will be interesting to see the statistics in due course. The evidence is patchy, from what I have seen, but again, this is for General Purposes & Licensing Committee to determine not for me to instruct.

## 4. From CIIr Simon Jeal to the Portfolio Holder for Resources, Commissioning and Contract Management

A number of local authorities have suffered damaging cyber-attacks over the past 12 months, what action has the Council taken in response to improve the cyber security of our IT systems?

### Reply:

The Council enhanced its IT security as a part of the recent IT transformation programme and we successfully dealt with recent threats and challenges without service interruption.

But, there is no room for complacency and as well as a programme of continuous improvement to our security systems we are working with government agencies to learn from both current best practice and issues which arose elsewhere to anticipate and protect against potential future vulnerabilities.

The problems faced by Cheltenham, Hackney and others have served to prompt forensic systems examination by all Councils and the detailed reports that are emerging from Hackney, shared by their Finance Director, Ian Williams, have proved to be of great value. The way in which the attack of last October was dealt with has rightly led to them being shortlisted for a national award, as indeed, so have we.

### Supplementary question:

The Portfolio Holder will be aware that the Harris Federation has suffered a very sophisticated ransom-ware attack which brought down a number of its systems including email and phone lines. Can he provide assurance that the Council is engaging with academies and other public bodies across the borough to ensure that their systems are also protected against attacks, particularly where sensitive data such as our residents' medical records is concerned.

### Reply:

It is difficult to give that assurance, because every organisation will be doing their own security checks, but we do liaise with all the key players across the borough and explain what we are doing, and the work being done by Mr Shukle and his team is really exceptionally good. I will have a word with him tomorrow about whether we can spin it across to academies. I will check with him and I will come back to Councillor Jeal with further details.

(Councillor Simon Fawthrop declared an interest at this point with regards to questions about IT, as he was employed by BT.)

# 5. From Cllr Josh King to the Portfolio Holder for Renewal, Recreation and Housing

A recent report by the BBC (<a href="https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-56510107">https://www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-56510107</a>) indicates that in Bromley less than 20% of rough sleepers helped by the 'Everyone In' campaign are now in settled or supported accommodation. Why has Bromley performed so badly in comparison with other local authorities and what is being done to improve the Borough's performance in the future?

### Reply:

The report by the BBC does not, unfortunately, provide a full picture. The key is understanding the term "Emergency Housing." The article has combined emergency accommodation placements such as hotel and hostel accommodation with genuinely decent self-contained accommodation which is spot purchased from the private sector. In Bromley, like the majority of boroughs, rough sleepers accommodated under the 'Everyone in' campaign were initially placed into hotel rooms due to the emergency situation. Since this time the vast majority have been assisted to move-on to suitable accommodation with only 7% (that is six people) currently remaining in hotel/hostel accommodation. While not all such accommodation may be "settled" in the sense meant in the article it is self-contained and suitable (flats or studios) available in the longer term for households, and thus very different from a hotel room. It is quite possible that other local authorities have reported accommodation types in different ways and indeed many have far greater numbers in hotels and hostels than is the case in Bromley. Unfortunately the BBC report did not look at that aspect and suitability of accommodation and support provided. So we now have a total of 94 identified, although we only had 12 rough sleepers before Covid. 71 are in settled accommodation that we have put them into, 26 have found their own accommodation leaving the 7% I spoke about, with one person sleeping rough by their own choice they have been offered accommodation. Additionally, the Council has made a bid for funding under the Rough Sleepers Initiative, which, alongside funds we have already received, will assist in our efforts to source suitable long term settled accommodation.

### Supplementary question from Councillor Angela Wilkins:

Do the figures you have just given include people who are camping in make-shift tents in various parks particularly in Crystal Palace Park and Betts Park.

### Reply:

No, I am not aware of the numbers of people sleeping in tents in parks, or why they are there, but having heard that question I will get my officers to have a look at that issue.

Additional supplementary question from Cllr Kathy Bance: (in writing) More powers are being given to outreach rough sleepers to manage those who will not engage. Does our homeless team see this as a positive and will those powers assist with long term rough sleepers?

## 6. From CIIr Ian Dunn to the Portfolio Holder for Environment & Community Services

What action is the Council taking to ensure that it will be able to deal with all applications to register historic rights of way in a timely manner, given the deadline for doing this of 2026?

### Reply:

The Council will ensure that resources are available to process applications within the required timeframe.

### **Supplementary question:**

Can you tell me how you will ensure that these resources are available?

### Reply:

Through the normal management and budgetary processes.

### Additional supplementary question from Cllr Vanessa Allen:

Given that the Rights of Way Sub-Committee has not met for several years it might be appropriate for them to look at this?

### Reply:

The Rights of Way Sub-Committee generally only meets consider when rights of way need to be changed. I suspect that, as we get towards the date and there is a reason to evaluate the applications for rights of way, in other words to judge whether they are rights of way or not, that is when the Rights of Way Sub-Committee will want to get involved. At the moment we are not at that position.

### 7. From CIIr Kevin Brooks to the Portfolio Holder for Children, Education and Families

Beckenham Harris Secondary School have made the decision to prioritise Beckenham Harris Primary School pupils for its new admissions policy. Whilst acknowledging the Portfolio Holder has limited decision making due to London Borough of Bromley academisation, will he agree that the school's decision sets a dangerous precedent and that it is worrying for the parents, pupils and staff of independent junior schools?

### Reply:

I am very grateful that Cllr Brooks recognises that the Council is not the admissions authority for the Harris Academy Beckenham, or any of the other secondary schools in the borough. It has long been a challenge of mine to make Members appreciate that the Council does not run the schools, and there is every chance that this is my final meeting as Portfolio Holder for Children, Education and Families it is nice to know that the message is getting across. His question asks if a new precedent will be set: I do not believe it will. There are numerous precedents for the creation of feeder schools, both within Bromley and in neighbouring boroughs.

### **Supplementary question:**

There does seem to have been, not only on this one but, a couple of years ago with Langley Park School for Boys, a feeling from residents of this borough not to support feeder schools. Would the Portfolio Holder, or whoever may come next if this is his last meeting, want to at least get the message across to academies that residents are not supportive of feeder schools.

### Reply:

The Education Department has expressed its opposition to the creation of feeder schools because it restricts choice for parents through reducing the number of open places available, which is all determined on proximity. What the local authority will do with each of these applications that comes in is that it assesses the information, it takes a factual appreciation of the situation on the ground and then it makes its recommendation to the Schools Adjudicator. As I have said, our concern is to make sure that there is sufficient school places available and so often in the past we have written to the Adjudicator to say that we oppose those feeder schools.

It is also why we are working to make sure that we get that proper expansion so we that we have suitable places. Councillor Brooks will know that we have got early approval from the DfE to open a new school and the plan is to open that in Penge in the Kent House area and work is progressing with that. So, hopefully there will be lots more places available in that area of the borough.

## 8. From Cllr Kieran Terry to the Portfolio Holder for Renewal, Recreation and Housing

As non-essential shops start to open following lockdown, how is the Council supporting our High Streets during the re-opening process?

### Reply:

In anticipation of the re-opening of our high streets, the Council has been working for some weeks with businesses and the borough's Business Improvement Districts to put in place a range of support measures to help our local businesses re-open safely. These have included a new website especially designed to offer guidance and support for safe opening, the opportunity for individual consultations and resources for businesses to display at point of sale, provided in collaboration with retail experts SE1Media and our own public protection officers who will be visiting premises to give advice and ensure compliance.

We have also launched a public facing campaign to let shoppers know what is in place, encourage them to 'shop local' and to ask them to play their own part in a safe return to the high street through social distancing and appropriate wearing of face coverings. New signage is being rolled out across all shopping areas, with messages around social distancing and hand washing to support this and we are managing pavement licence applications to allow traders more space to trade. We also continue on a daily basis to liaise with large retailers around queue management and this will continue for the foreseeable future.

Additionally, we are delivering Restart Grants to support businesses as they reopen, as well as a range of discretionary grants to support businesses remobilise safely.

This sits alongside the many business support grants that have been distributed during lockdown. Our high streets have also benefited from enhanced cleaning regimes delivered by colleagues in Environment in preparation for the reopening.

### **Supplementary question:**

Would the Portfolio Holder agree with me that residents, subject to doing so in a covid-secure way, should take the opportunity over the next couple of days to get out in the sunshine and support our local shops and businesses?

### Reply:

I do, and I have been to the High Street in Bromley and it is like a Christmas Saturday. What does concern me is that people continue to remember the rules about social distancing and wearing masks. This is vitally important – the last thing the economy needs whether in Bromley or nationally is another lockdown, and if we do not take care that will happen.

## 9. From CIIr Angela Wilkins to the Portfolio Holder for Environment & Community Services

Now that you have finally become active in LB Croydon's proposals for a Low Traffic Neighbourhood (LTN) in Crystal Palace, please provide an update on what mitigations you are considering on Bromley roads to protect residents of Cintra Park and Milestone & Patterson Roads.

### Reply:

Executive members and officers of the Council have been fully involved with responding to the unwanted LTN from the first minute Bromley became aware of Croydon's plans. We have been involved and on the side of residents throughout and unlike former Councillor Ahmad and yourself, we haven't sat on the fence. We have pressed Croydon to remove the barriers that were pushing huge amounts of traffic onto these narrow residential streets. If Croydon had involved us from the beginning we like to think we would have saved residents from all the negative impacts and stress that residents experienced last year. Since Croydon removed the barriers there has been much relief for those Bromley residents.

The Council is not presuming that the LTN will ever be implemented. The consultation Croydon completed on Croydon's proposed scheme showed the majority opposed it; Bromley has also highlighted its many failings. Given its proximity to our Borough, and in the absence of our support, we expect the proposed scheme will eventually be referred to the Mayor for adjudication.

We will be making representations to the Mayor on behalf of Crystal Palace residents living on both sides of the Borough boundary in continued opposition to this ill-conceived scheme if it does.

### Supplementary question:

I would like to refute the idea that Councillor Ahmad and I have sat on the fence on this – that is a long way from the truth. What we have said from the beginning is that this is a cross-borough matter and it needs a cross-borough solution. You are assuming that Croydon is not going to be proceeding with this, but we are all aware

that what Croydon is doing is based on legislation passed by this Conservative government. The impact on Milestone, Patterson and Cintra Roads was unquestionably unacceptable and I have made that crystal clear from day one. What would you do if this is what Croydon proceed to do? Consultations are difficult beasts at the best of times, the question is, if this proceeds what would you do?

### Reply:

I do not think I would like to proceed on hypotheticals. I do not expect this scheme to continue in the form that I have recently seen proposed. My current understanding is that the Deputy Mayor for Cycling and Walking has previously expressed comments that would suggest that there are some aspects of the proposal that he would not like to see in the scheme because they do not deliver his objectives. So I would not expect the scheme to be delivered in its current guise. On that basis I would not expect it to be delivered at all. There are a number of hurdles for it to go through and I expect it to be modified. I do not see how it is possible to deliver an answer on hypotheticals.

### Additional supplementary question from Cllr Simon Fawthrop:

Has the Portfolio Holder seen or been given sight of any correspondence between Bromley Labour Party and Croydon Labour Party asking for this scheme to be scrapped, or objecting to the scheme?

### Reply:

That was correspondence that was not to me, so I do not think I would have seen it.

### Additional supplementary question from Cllr Kieran Terry:

Would the Portfolio Holder agree with me that the real cause of this issue is the dreadful LTN scheme imposed by Labour-run Croydon Council, with funding approved by Labour-run TfL, with no consultation with Bromley Council or with residents, and to truly support residents affected by this Councillor Wilkins should be joining Conservative members in both Bromley and Croydon asking for this to be removed altogether?

#### Reply:

I would agree with that. Following our pressure, and there were also other court cases, the scheme is currently being removed and I will continue to support that.

### Additional supplementary question from Cllr Tony Owen:

Does the Portfolio Holder think that there is anything to learn from Harrow Council who are thinking of scrapping four Low Traffic Neighbourhoods and three new cycle lanes after a consultation found most residents opposed them.

### Reply:

I have seen a report that you forwarded to me on what Harrow is looking at. I would certainly encourage Councils to listen to residents and look at schemes before they do that. Bromley's schemes have been supported by residents.

## 10. From Cllr Kathy Bance MBE to the Portfolio Holder for Public Protection & Enforcement

With the police and a government task force looking to make our streets safer for all, will you re-consider installing additional CCTV in Bromley's serious crime locations?

### Reply:

All requests for new CCTV must be accompanied by a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) with supporting data from the Police. Should the Police consider an area to require CCTV surveillance, they will submit a PIA that establishes that the surveillance activity has a proper legal basis, that is undertaken in accordance with the law, and that the activity is justified and necessary to address a pressing need.

### **Supplementary question:**

What if any action is Bromley doing to make our parks and streets safer for everyone, apart from advising people not to use our parks after dark.

### Reply:

As you know, we are currently having a CCTV review, reviewing the position of all our cameras in the borough, and whether some of them can be moved to other areas. Rob Vale has a meeting coming up very soon with the Penge BID to discuss the cameras in Penge so if you would like to feed into that process please feel free to email him.



### **COUNCIL MEETING**

### 1st March 2021

#### QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL FOR WRITTEN REPLY

### 1. From Cllr Ian Dunn to the Portfolio Holder for Renewal, Recreation & Housing

What % of rough sleepers have been:-

- a) allocated long term accommodation
- b) are in Temporary Accommodation
- c) are homeless?

### Reply:

Of a total of 94 rough sleepers, 64% (61) have been allocated long term accommodation, 7% (6) are in temporary accommodation and 1% (1) are homeless (accommodation has been offered and refused.) A further 28% (26) were assisted to access former accommodation or secure accommodation directly.

## 2. From CIIr Ian Dunn to the Portfolio Holder for Environment & Community Services

Please provide the total number of Permits for Road & Street works granted to Utility Companies for the last three years, broken down by year, with the number of Permits where the Utility Company overran the time specified on the permit.

### Reply:

**Total Permits** 

<u>2018-2019</u> - 25,911

<u>2019-2020</u> - 23,181

<u>2020-2021</u> - 19,795

Total Overruns (Section 74)

2018-2019 - 59

2019-2020 - 74

<u>2020-2021</u> - 38

# 3. From Cllr Angela Wilkins to the Portfolio Holder for Renewal, Recreation and Housing

Please provide details of the criteria by which all discretionary COVID grant applications are being determined, along with details of where such were scrutinised by councillors.

### Reply:

There have essentially been 2 types of Covid business grants available, mandatory and discretionary grants. The mandatory grants are those grants where criteria, including thresholds are set by central government and the Council facilitate payments; the discretionary grants are those where the Council has received funds to direct to the local economy and local businesses as appropriate. Typically the discretionary grants come with government guidelines, and then have an element of discretion the Council can apply. All schemes have been subject to reports, and wherever possible and time has allowed engagement with the business community. The Council have taken the approach to 'stretch' grants as far as possible and support businesses that have missed out on other payments such as the self-employment scheme, or mandatory grants.

The first tranche of discretionary business grant funding was received in May 2020. The amount received to be used for a discretionary grant scheme was £2,402,500. Report HPR2020/011 went to Pre-Decision Scrutiny by Executive, Resources and Contracts PDS Committee on 27 May 2020 and with a recommendation for approval by the Leader and that deferred authority for "limited discretion" be given to the Director of Housing, Planning, Property and Regeneration to make minor changes to the approach once additional technical guidance had been given by the Government.

At the time of the report the Government recommended targeting the following businesses for grant assistance: small businesses in shared offices or flexible workspaces (including units in larger complexes), regular market traders with fixed property costs, bed and breakfasts that pay Council tax instead of business rates and charity properties in receipt of charitable rate relief. The report also recommended including park cafes as they had missed out on previous grants as they do not pay business rates which was used to identify eligibility.

Following approval of this report a discretionary business grant was created which was called the Local Economy Business Grant. The eligibility for this grant had 3 sections: Government Mandatory Eligibility Criteria, General Eligibility Criteria and Local Eligibility Criteria. The details of the criteria were as follows:

Government Mandatory Eligibility Criteria

- 1. Have been trading on 11 March 2020
- 2. Not be in administration, insolvent or in receipt of a striking off notice
- 3. Not be eligible for or in receipt of a cash grant from a central government COVID-19 related scheme, including: Small Business Grant, Retail Hospitality or Leisure Grant, Fisheries Response Fund, Domestic Seafood Supply Scheme Zoos Support Fund Dairy Hardship Fund.

### General Eligibility Criteria

- 1. The business must be a small or micro business.
- 2. As a result of COVID-19, the business must have sustained a fall in income of 50% or more.

### Local Eligibility Criteria

- 1. 25% or more of your business's employees are resident in the London Borough of Bromley.
- 2. Business has an annual turnover of under £2m.
- 3. Business has an active apprenticeship or salaried internship scheme
- 4. If business is a charity, your charity provides direct benefit to the residents of the borough.
- 5. The business's main premises is in one of the borough's Renewal Areas or a Strategic Outer London Development Centre as defined in the Local Plan.
- 6. State Aid. Must confirm that in receiving a grant you are in compliance with State aid rules.

#### Second Tranche Autumn 2020

The second tranche of discretionary business grants was received in November 2020 and was for the amount of £6,646,720, referred to as Additional Restrictions Grant, which when initially announced the Council was informed would be the only payment of discretionary grant until March 2022. Given further restrictions were then announced this sum was then 'topped up' by the Government with an additional payment in February 2020 of £2,952,158.

Following engagement with the business community, including an online questionnaire, Report no. HPR2021/55 went for Pre-Decision Scrutiny by the Executive, Resources & Contracts PDS Committee 6 January 2021 and was approved by the Executive on 13 January 2021. This report set out details for the Bromley Additional Restrictions Grant Phase 1. This comprised the following schemes: Online Enterprise Hub, Business Hardship Fund, Innovation Grants scheme, Lockdown Top-up Grant and an independent Public House and clubs grant. A third report no. HPR2021/015 for recommendations for allocating ARG grant spending was circulated For Pre-Decision Scrutiny by the Renewal, Recreation and Housing PDS Committee on 15 March 2021 and given the need to support businesses quickly, was taken for Leader's decision. The approved report recommended an additional top up £1.5m with the potential to increase this to £2m with Director approval in conjunction with the Portfolio Holder through reallocating underspends not claimed on other schemes. Other schemes approved included the following:

- Grant for One Person, Home Based businesses (self Employed or Sole Directors)
- Grants to support businesses with Special Treatment License Holders
- Grants to support businesses with Pavement Licenses, trading outside
- Community Swimming Facilities

- Grants for Cultural Recovery
- Mandatory Grants Support to support those grants where mandatory deadlines have just been missed.

### 4. From Cllr Angela Wilkins to the Leader of the Council

Please provide details of funding provided by the Mayor of London to Bromley since his election in 2016. Please also provide details of cuts to funding from central government over the same period.

### Reply:

The Mayor of London has charged this Council a net £181.9m since his first budget in 2017/18.

The Government has reduced funding to this Council by £15.6m over the same period.

A table detailing the breakdown of both is appended for reference. (Appendix 1)

### Appendix 1 (Question 4)

### GLA Funding Per Year £'000

	Cime	Adult			
	Prevention	Education /	Transport	GLA	
	and Property	Youth	for	Precept	
	Inspections.	Offending	London	Paid	Total
2017/18	385	0	4,429	-35,143	-30,329
2018/19	406	0	3,008	-37,352	-33,938
2019/20	397	1,029	4,717	-41,134	-34,991
2020/21	445	1,692	2,818	-42,812	-37,857
			Not		
2021/22*	445	1,630	known	-46,884	-44,809
Total	2,078	4,351	14,972	-203,325	-181,924

### \*2021/22 - include budgeted/projected figures where available

### Central Gov Funding £'000

		Other	
Loss of		Grant	
	Core Grant	Reductions	Total
	9,620	508	10,128
	5,400	2,607	8,007
	3,600	-3,033	567
	-616	-1,685	-2,301
	-448	-271	-719
	17,556	-1,874	15,682

This page is left intentionally blank